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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF COMSYN INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Comsyn India Private
Limited (herein referred to as “the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March
31, 2024, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income), the
standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2024 and its profits and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and rules made
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles




generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, ma nagement is responsible for assessing the company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has not realistic alternative to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for over viewing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the SAs will
always detect material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decision of the users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such control.




e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of
Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s and Board of Director’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
Company to express an opinion on the financial statements

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charge with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation preclude public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b)  Inour opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for certain
matters in respect of audit trail as stated in paragraph 2(vi) below.

¢)  The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and
the standalone statements of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agreement
with relevant books of account,

d)  Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2)
of the Act.

f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith in respect of audit trail are as stated in paragraph 1(b) above on
reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 2(vi) below on reporting
under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and auditors) Rules, 2014.

g)  The requirement of reporting, with respect to the adequacy of internal financial
control over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, is not applicable to the Company in view of notification No. G.S.R.
583(E) dated 13th June, 2017; and

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements. (Refer Note 31 to the standalone financial
statements.)

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.




iii.

There is no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company. :

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,

vi.

(b)

no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company
to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“intermediaries) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall :

e directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
beneficiary”)
or

® provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall:

» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
Funding Party
or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused to us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (iv)(a) and (iv)(b) contain any
material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks and in accordance with the
requirements of the Implementation guide on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, except for the instances mentioned
below, the company has used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of
accounts, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the respective softwares:

a. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled to
log any direct data changes for the accounting software used for
recording and maintaining payroll information and quantitative records
of inventory.




b. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility to log any direct
data changes for the accounting software used for recording and
maintaining master data does not provide the details of the user who
made the changes.

Further, where audit trajl (edit log) facility was enabled and operated
throughout the year, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 is applicable
from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors), Rules 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the provisions of section
197 are not applicable to the Company

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent
applicable.

For Avinash Agrawal & Co.

T, Chartered Accountants
Indore f” Al (FR No. OZ}@GGC)

Date: 30-05-2024 ME P

, (CA Avinash Agrawal)

/' (Membership No. 410875)
Proprietor

UDIN: 24410875BKFPHU9457
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Comsyn India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 4, under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our Report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including

(b)

(d)

(i) (a)

quantitative details of property, plant and equipment (hereinafter referred to as PPE)
except for sufficient description of the PPE to make identification possible and its
situation in the current year. The register for property, plant and equipment s
maintained in the spreadsheet file. The controls and security measures in the register

of property, plant and equipment are such that once finalised, it can be altered
without proper audit trail,

(B) The Company has maintained Proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant
and equipment by which ali Property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased
manner. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment
were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company holds no immovable
property (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its
Property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use asset) of Intangible assets or
both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition
of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and
coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were
noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were
10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned




(iii)

working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the
basis of security of current assets. Therefore, sub-clause (b) is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not provided security or
made advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms limited
liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has made loans to
other entities in respect of which the requisite information is as below.

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and as per the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has provided loans to other entities during the
year as follows —
Rs. in lakhs

’?articulars Loans —[
Aggregate amount granted / provided
during the year ended 315 March 2024
-others (staff loans) 0.40

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet
date- 315 March 2024
Lothers (staff loans) 0.15 J

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of
all loans are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has granted interest free
loans to its staff for which schedule of repayment of principal has been stipulated. The
repayments are regular.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the amount is not overdue. Accordingly,
sub-clauses (d) and (e) of clause (iii) of the order are not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, the Company has not provided any security,
made investments and provided guarantee as specified under Sections 185 and 186 of
the Act. In respect of the loans given by the Company, in our opinion, the provisions of
Sections 185 and 186 of the Act have been complied with.




(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of the cost records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the products manufactured by
itand services provided by it.

(vii) (a)

(b)

The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and service tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other statutory dues were in arrears, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST, PF,
ESI, income tax, Sales Tax, service tax, value added tax, custom duty, excise duty and
cess or other statutory dues, which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions as income, previously unrecorded as income in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year.

(ix) (a)

(c)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not taken any term
loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall examination

of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that funds raised on short term basis
have not been used for long term purposes by the Company.




(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall examination

(x) (a)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)(a)

of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligation of
its subsidiaries or associates as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 as the
company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint ventures. Accordingly,
clause 3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed
by us, the Company has no subsidiaries or associate companies as defined under the
Companies Act, 213. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)((a) of the order is not
applicable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the order is not applicable,

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by the Company
or on the Company has been noticed or reported during course of the audit.

No report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed by the auditors in form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the examination
of records of the company, the company did not receive any complaint from any
whistle blower.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the standalone Financial Statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards. Provisions of section 177 in respect of approval by audit
committee is not applicable to the Company.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in
our opinion, the Company is not required to have an internal audit system as per the




provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause (xiv)(b) of the order is not
applicable.

(xv) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with them. Hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly clause 3(xvi)(b) of the order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is nota Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the order is
not applicable.

(d) According to information and explanations provided to us during the course of our
audit, the group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of the
order is not applicable.

(xvii)  The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, Accordingly,
clause 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable.

(xix) According to information and explanations given to us and on basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We however state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our report is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the provisions of section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable
for the year.




(b) According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the provisions of section 135 are not applicable to the

Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable
for the year.

(xxi)There is no subsidiary or associate company of the Company. Accordingly, the company
is not required to make consolidated financial statements hence clause 3(xxi) of
the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Avinash Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FR No. 022666C)
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< (CA Avinash Agrawal)

" (Membership No. 410875)
Proprietor

UDIN: 24410875BKFPHU9457

Indore
Date: 30-05-2024




COMSYN INDIA PVT LTD

CIN :- U25209MP2020PTC052503

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March, 2024

(Rupees In Lakhs)
. Asat31st Asat31st
Parteulars NoteNo-| yrarch, 2024 | March, 2023
ASSETS
1 NON CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,845.28 1,964.32
(b) Capital Work in Progress 3 1132 =
(i) Others Financial Assets 4 47.33 70.63
{c) Other Non Current Assets 5 34.74 0.71
1,938.67 2,035.66
2 CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories 6 536.58 245.38
(b) Financial Assets :
(i) Trade Receivables 7 114.73 -
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 - 1.66 0.04
(iii) Loans 9 0.15 2.26
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) -0.49 6.13
(d) Other Current Assets 10 72.23 -10.64
724.87 243.17
TOTAL ASSETS 2,663.53 2,278.83
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 15.00 15.00
(b) Other Equity 12 100.97 17.10
115.97 32.10
LIABILITIES
1 NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities
{ij Borrowings 13 210.22 209.82
(i) Lease Liability 14 500.60 532.72
(iii) Other financial liabilities 15 2.00 -
(b} Prouvisions 16 15.23 10.84
[¢) Deferred Tax Liability 17 211 5.29
730.16 758.68
2 CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 1,233.95 1,253.90
(ii)Lease Liability 14 69.78 67.79
(iii) Trade Payables
(A) Total outstanding dues of creditors micro and small
enterprises; and 19 7.21 217
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small
enterprises 19 463.31 121.16
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 20 3.26 3.75
(b) Other Current Liabilities 21 39.88 39.28
1,817.40 1,488.00
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,663.53 2,278.83
Basis of Preparation, Measurement and Significant Accounting Policies. 1to2
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments. 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statement
For and on behalf of Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attached
For Avinash Agrawal & Co
Chartered Accountant

Ravindra Choudhary Pramal Choudhary N :022666C
Director Director }f e
DIN 06417163 DIN 03562347 K)M’-

(CA Avinash Agrawal)

Place: Indore

Proprietor
30.05.2024

MN.410875




COMSYN INDIA PVT LTD

CIN :- UZ25209MP2020PTC052503

STANDALONE PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT FOR PERIOD ENDED ON 31st March, 2024

(Rupees In Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
Particulars Note No. | ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
INCOME:
I [Revenue From Operations 22 2,853.49 2,692.25
II |Other Income 23 2.51 1.67
Total Income (I+1I) 2,855.99 2,693.92
III |[EXPENSES:
Cost of materials consumed 24 1,915.29 1,615.49
Purchase of stock in trade 25 196.86 215.16
Change_s ininventories of finished goods, stock in trade & work in 26 16976 4278
progress
Employee benefit expense 27 256.29 236.52
Finance costs 28 160.48 19517
Depreciation and amortization expenses 3 127.62 126.70
Other expenses 29 264.37 256.75
Total Expenses (111} 2,751.15 2,688.57
IV |Profit/ (Loss) before tax (III-IV) 104.84 5.35
V |Tax expense
(1) Current tax 27.44 6.33
(2) Deferred tax Credit / ( Charge ) (3.18) -7.11
Total Tax (V) 24.26 -0.77
VI |Profit/ (Loss) for the year from continuing operations(1V-V) 80.58 6.12
VII |Other comprehensive income 30
A (i) Items that will not be re-classified to profit or loss 3.30 3.34
Re-measurments of the net defined benefit plans
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be re-classified to
profitor loss - -3.95
Re-measurments of the net defined benefit plans
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 83.87 5.51
VIII|Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):
Basic 53.72 4.08
Diluted 53.72 4.08
Basis of Preparation, Measurement and Significant Accounting Policies. 1to?2
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments. 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statement
For and on behalf of Board of Directors

As per our report of even date attached

For Avinash Agrawal & Co
MAWJUA Chartered Accountant
Rre Aty RN :022666C

Ravindra Choudhary Pramal Choudhary e

Director Director ‘ M

DIN 06417163 DIN 03562347 (CAQvinash Agrawal)
Place: Indore Proprietor

30.05.2024 MN.410875




- COMSYN INDIA PVT LTD
CIN:- U25209MP2020PTC052503

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

(A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Current Reporting Period

(Rupees In Lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period Changes in equity share capital Eealanc,e at thl? e“fi afthe
. 2 . porting period i.e.31st
i.e.1st April 2023 during the year 2023-24 March 2024
15.00 - 15.00
(b) Previous Reporting Period
(Rupees In Lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period Changes in equity share capital BaIanc_e a th? enfi ol
. K : reporting period i.e.31st
i.e.dst April 2022 during the year 2022-23 March 2023
15.00 - 15.00
(B) OTHER EQUITY
(Rupees In Lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus
Capital General | Securities | Retained Total
Reserve Reserve Premium | Earnings
AS ON 31st March, 2024
Balance atthie beginning of the reporting period i.e. 1st
April 2023 - - - 17.10 17.10
Add :
Profit for the year - - - 80.58 8058
Other comphrehensive income - - - 3.30 3.30
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 83.87 83.87
Dividend Paid - - - - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e, 31st
March 2024 - - - 100.97 100.97
(Rupees In Lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus
Capital General | Securities | Retained Total
Reserve Reserve premium | Earnings
AS ON 31 MARCH 2023
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period i.e. 1st
April 2022 - - - 11.59 11.59
Add:
Profit for the Year - - - 6.12 6.12
Other comphrehensive income for the year - - - -0.61 -0.61
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 5.51 5.51
Dividend Paid - - - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period i.e.31st
March 2023 - - - 17.10 17.10

a) Nature and purpose of Reserves.
1) Retained Earnings

distributions paid to shareghelders.

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statement

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other

As per our report of even date attached

For Avinash Agrawal & Co

R dra Choudhary Pramal Choudhary Chartered Accquntants
Director Director :
DIN 06417163 DIN 3562347

Place: Indore
Date: 30.05.2024

(CA Avinash Agrawal)
Proprietor
MN.410875




COMSYN INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN :-U25209MPZ2020PTC052503

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

(Rupees In Lakhs)
For the year | For the year
Particulars ended 31st | ended 31st

Mavch, 2024 | March, 2023
A: CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 108.14 8.69
Adjusted for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 127.62 126.70
Interest Income (2.51) (1.67)
Finance costs (Interest on lease liabilities) 41.04 42.89
Finance costs 119.44 152.28
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 393.73 328.89
Adjusted for:
Decrease / (increase) in inventories (291.20) 94.56
Decrease(increase) in other financial assets (non-current) 2331 (12.37)
Decrease(increase) in other non-current assets (34.03) 1.49
Decrease(increase) in trade receivables (114.73) 59.71
Decrease(increase) inloans given (current) 211 (1.38)
Decrease(increase) in other current assets (82.87) 97.35
Non- current / Current financial and other assets (497.42) 239.36
Increase(decrease) in trade payable 347.19 23.84
Increase(decrease) in other financial liabilities (current) (0.48) (0.06)
Increase(decrease) in other financial liabilities (non-current) 2.00 -
Increase(decrease) in other current liabilites .59 (4.18)
Increase(decrease) in provisions (non current) 4.39 391
Increase(decrease) in provisions (current) - (0.13)
Non- current / Current financial and other liabilities 353.68 23.38
Cash generated from operations 24999 591.62
Taxes Paid (Net) (20.82) (8.04)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 229,17 583.58
B: CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets (19.89) 131.82
Interest Income 251 1.67
Net Cash flow (Used in) Investing Activities (17.39) 133.50
C: CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings 0.40 (149.75)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (19.95) (362.61)
Interest Paid on Lease Liabilities (41.04) - (42.89)
Principal Repayment of Lease Liabilities (30.13) (14.64)
Interest Paid (119.44) (152.28)
Net Cash flow from/(Used in) Financing Activities (210.16) (722.17)
Net (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.62 (5.11)
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.04 5.15
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents* 1.66 0.04

(Refer Note B)

Note: The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set outin Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of

Cash Flows'.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statement

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

@«@“ﬁ%/@bm&mmw

Ravindra Choudhary Pramal Choudhary
Director Director
DIN 06417163 DIN 03562347

Place: Indore
Date: 30.05.2024

As per our report of even date attached
For Avinash Agrawal & Co
Chartered Accountant

(CA Avinash Agrawal)

FRN :022666C

N

Proprietor
MN.410875




COMSYN INDIA PRIVATE LITMIED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH,
2024.

1. Corporate information

Comsyn India Private Limited (“COMSYN” or The "Company") is domiciled in India
and incorporated on 26th August, 2020 under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and has its registered office at ‘Commercial House’, 3-4 Jaora Compound,
M.Y.H. Road, Indore, Madhya Pradesh - 452001, India. The company is the
manufacturer of HDPE/PP Fabric and planning to expand its activities

2. Basis of preparation, presentation and material accounting policies
2.1 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Board of Directors approved the financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2024 and authorised for issue on 30th May 2024.

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation
a. Basis of Preparation

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following historical cost
convention, except for certain assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value,
recoverable amount or net realisable value in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards. The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared to
comply with the Indian Accounting standards (‘Ind AS’), including the rules
notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b. Basis of Presentation

i. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in
Equity are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule III to
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been
prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash
Flows” by use of Indirect method. The disclosure requirements with respect to
items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the
Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial
statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified

Accounting Standards. &/



ii. The Company’s Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR),
which is also its functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest
lakhs, except when otherwise indicated, as permitted by Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013. Transactions and balances with values below the rounding
off norm adopted by the Company have been reflected as “0” in the relevant notes
to these financial statements.

iii. Current and Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on
Current/ Non-Current classification.

An asset is treated as Current when it is -

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when: -

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

2.3 Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of these standalone financial statements in conformity with the
recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of the
company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of
assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the
periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and future periods are affected. The Company uses the
following critical accounting estimates in preparation of its financial statements:
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Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the reporting date of financial
statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of useful lives
and carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, fair value measurements
of financial instruments, revenue recognition, employee benefits, valuation of
deferred tax assets and leases, these are discussed below.

Outcomes within the next financial year that are different from the assumption
could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability.

(a) Property, Plant and Egﬁipment

Judgement is required in applying the recognition criteria as to what constitutes
an item of property, plant and equipment. The Company uses judgement to assess
the degree of certainty attached to the flow of future economic benefits that are
attributable to the use of the asset on the basis of the evidence available at the time
of initial recognition. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation
of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The Company reviews its carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment carried
at cost (net of impairment, if any) annually, when there is indication for
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is accounted for in the statement of profit and loss. It involves,
among other techniques, estimations in respect of expected future cash flows and
discount rates to arrive at present value of expected cash flows.

The carrying amount of Property, Plant and Equipment is given at note no. 3

(b) Financial Instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted price in active markets, their
fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash
Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

The carrying value of fair value of financial instruments is given at note no. 4, 7 to
9,13 to 15,and 18 to 20.
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(c) Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenue primarily from sale of merchandise.

The Company’s contract with customers could include promises to transfer
multiple products and services to a customer. The Company assesses the products
/ services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations
in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves
judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit
independently from such deliverables.

Judgment is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract and
to Prescribe the transaction price to each distinct performance obligation. The
transaction price could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or
variable consideration with elements such as volume discounts, price concessions
and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time
value of money if the contract includes a significant financing component.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction
price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the
end of each reporting period. The Company allocates the elements of variable
considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is
observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance
obligations.

The Company exercises judgment in determining whether the performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. The Company
considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are
rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of
enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such
product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer,
acceptance of delivery by the customer etc.

The Company uses judgement to estimate the value of the goods or services to the
customer transferred to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under contract which is used to determine the degree of completion of the
performance obligation.

The amount of revenue recognised is given in note no. 22.
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(d) Employee benefits

The accounting of employee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefit requires
the Company to use assumptions. These assumptions have been explained under
employee benefits note.

The carrying value of employee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefits is
given in note no. 27.

(e) Deferred Tax Asset

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and tax losses can be utilised. Accordingly, the Company exercises its judgement
to reassess the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting
period.

(f)-Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the
requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment.
The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including
anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines
the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the.
Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not
to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the
option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The
Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period
of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to
the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

The carrying value of lease obligations and Right of use assets is given at note
numbers 14 and 3 respectively.

2.4 Recentaccounting developments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to
the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
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issued from tiine to time. For the year énded March 31, 2024, MCA has not
notified any new standards

2.5 Summary of Material Accounting Policies

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost after deducting trade discount
and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairmentlosses, if any. Such cost
includes purchase price, borrowing cost, non-refundable purchase taxes, any cost
directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended
use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from
exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment which are significant to the total cost of that item
of Property, Plant and Equipment and having different useful life are accounted
separately.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be
measured reliably.

The Company has opted cost model as its accounting policy for measurement after
recognition.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided using Straight Line
Method taking life of the assets as given in the Schedule -II of Companies Act, 2013
on 959% of value of assets.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant
and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of a Property, Plant and Equipment are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derecognised. |

Property, Plant and Equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is
any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
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other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

(b) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisition, as
applicable, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any.

The Company has opted cost model as its accounting policy for measurement after
recognition.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an Intangible Asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

The Company’s intangible assets comprises assets with finite useful life which are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful life.

Intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is
any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss

(c)Inventories

Inventories consists of raw materials, Work in progress, finished goods and stores
and spares. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value
except wastage which is valued at net realisable value. The cost of inventories shall
comprise all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present, location and condition. The costs of
inventories are assigned using the first in, first out (FIFO) formula. When
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inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories shall be recognised
as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised.

(d)_Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, cash at banks, short-term
deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

(e) Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement
The company recognises a financial asset when it becomes party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument. All Financial Assets are initially recognised at fair
value. Transaction costs that are dlrectly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
Financial Assets, which are not at Fair Value through Profit or Loss, are adjusted
to the fair value on initial recognition

Where the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price an entity account for the difference as follows:
» Asagain or loss, if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability,

¢ Isdeferred in other cases. The deferred difference is recognised as a gain or
loss only to the extent it arises from a change in factor (including time) that
market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or
liability.

Subsequent Measurement :
Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost

A Financial Asset is measured at Amortised Cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial
Assets and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that represents solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.




Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are
measured at FVTPL.

Investment in subsidiary is measured at cost

Investments in associates are measured at cost.

Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ (ECL)

model, for evaluating impairment of Financial Assets other than those measured
at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL). .

Expected Credit Losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal
to:

e The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from
those default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date); or

« Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the life of the financial instrument).

For Trade Receivables the Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment
loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every reporting date these historical
default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed. ' |

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss
where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase
in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

Reclassification of Financial Assets

Financial assets are reclassified subsequent to their recognition, if the Company
changes its business model for managing those financial assets. Changes in
business model are made and applied prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of immediately next reporting period following the changes
in business model in accordance with principles laid down under Ind AS 109 -
Financial Instruments.

Financial Liabilities
Initial Recognition and Measurement

The company recognises a financial liability when it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All Financial Liabilities are recognised at



fair value and in case of financial liabilities classified as ‘subsequently measured at
amortised cost’ are shown net of directly attributable cost.

Where the fair value of the financial liability at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price an entity account for the difference as follows:

» Asagain or loss, if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability,

o Isdeferred in other cases. The deferred difference is recognised as a gain or
loss only to the extent it arises from a change in factor (including time) that
market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or
liability. .

Subsequent Measurement
Financial Liabilities which are classified as ‘subsequently measured at amortised
cost’ are carried at ameortised cost using the effective interest method.

Hedge Accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts to
mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates. At the inception of a hedge
relationship, -the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

Hedges that meet the criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

Fair Value Hedge
The Company designates derivative contracts as hedging instruments to mitigate

the risk of change in fair value of hedged item due to movement in foreign
exchange rates. The gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in profit
or loss. The hedging gain or loss on the hedged item adjusts the carrying amount
of the hedged item and is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments
The Company derecognises a Financial Asset when the contractual rights to the

cash flows from the Financial Asset expire or it transfers the Financial Asset and
the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A Financial liability (or
a part of a Financial liability) is derecognised when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(f) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions -

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a -



reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

Disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of amount cannot
be made. |

(g) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects
to be entitled to in exchange for transferring distinct goods or services to a
customer as specified in the contract, excluding amounts collected on behalf of
third parties (for example taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government).
Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of performance obligations and a
receivable is recognised when it becomes unconditional.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods
or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Sale of Goods . '

Generally, control is transferred upon shipment of goods to the customer or when
the goods is made available to the customer, provided transfer of title to the
customer occurs and the Company has not retained any significant risks of
ownership or future obligations with respect to the goods shipped.

Job work and other services
Revenue from rendering of other services is recognised over time by measuring

the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligations by using
output method at the reporting period.

Interest Income
Interest Income from a Financial Assets is recognised using effective interest rate

method. _
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Export Licences
The revenue from transfer of export licences has been recognised when control
over licences are transferred.

(h)_Contract Balances

Trade Receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional.

|

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when
the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract

liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract.

(i) Government Grants

Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are recognised
when there is reasonable assurance that:

(a) The entity.will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and

(b) The grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the entity recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Presentation of Government grants

Grant related to specific fixed assets are presented in the balance sheet by showing
the grant as deduction from the gross value of asset concerned in arriving at their
book value. '

Grants related to income are presented as part of profit or loss.

(j) Employee Benefits Expense i

Short-Term Employee Benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in

exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense
during the period when the employees render the services.



Leave encashment is accounted for on cash basis. Company compulsorily pays for
encashment of leave within 12 months. Hence all payments are short term in
nature.

Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans
The Company recognises contribution payable to the Provident Fund and ESIC
scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company has opted Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of
India. The Company makes contribution to the fund under that scheme. Provision
for obligations is made for any shortfall in contribution to the fund as against the
present value of defined benefit obligations towards gratuity at the reporting date.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from adjustments and changes in

actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur in Other
. |

Comprehensive Income. '

(k) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of
qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset
is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
period for which they are incurred.

(1) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets '

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that any Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets or group of Assets,
called Cash Generating Units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of
impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit

and loss.
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(m) Income Taxes

Income taxes .

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the
deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and deferred taxes are
recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

Current taxes

‘ .
Current tax liabilities and assets are measured at the amount expected to be paid
to or recovered from the Income Tax authorities, based on tax rates and laws that
are enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax aésets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary
differences are expected to be received or settled.

(n) Leases

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for
its leasing arrangements, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset.



The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if itinvolves
the use of an identified asset and the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset.
The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-
use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses, if any(and adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method
from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-
of-use asset. |

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate.

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(o) Foreign Currencies Transactions and Translation

Initial Recognition and Measurement | -
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using
exchange rates at the date of the transaction i.e. spot exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency.

Subsequent recognition and Measurement
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated

at the functional currency at closing rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent of exchange
differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign
currency borrowings that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of qualifying assets which are capitalised as cost of assets.

(p) Earnings Per Share |
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusted
for bonus element in equity share.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in determination of basic
earnings per share to take into account the conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as at the
beginning of the period unless issued at a later date. %/
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Others Financial Assets (Rupees in Lakhs)
As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Security deposits
Unsecured- considered good 47.33 70.63
Total 47.33 70.63

(Refer note no 2.5 ( e) for accounting policy, note no 2.3 ( b) and note no 31 for other information)

Other Non Current Assets (Rupees in Lakhs)
As at 31st Asat 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
i. Capital Advances 4.41 -0.01
ii. Advances other than the capital advances
Prepaid rent (IND AS) 30.33 0.71
Total 34.74 0.71
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories (Rupees in Lakhs)
As at 31st Asat 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value except wastage which is
valued at net realisable value
Raw Materials
Material in hand 205.29 83.85
Work-in-progress 60.48 103.84
Finished goods 259.75 46.64
Stores and spares 11.05 11.06
Total 536.58 245.38

(Refer note no. 2.5 ( c) for accounting policy on Inventories)

The carrying amount of inventory pledged as securities for borrowing is Rs. 536.58 Lakhs (Rs. 245.38

lakhs) as at 31st March,2024.

~ Asat31st | Asat31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023

Details of Inventory
Raw Materials

Plastic Granules 187.71 79.35

Master Batch 17.58 4.50
Total 205.29 83.85
Work in Progress/Semi Finished Goods

Fabric (at Jobwork) 0.28 0.72

Fabrilated Thread 39.89 30.72

Goods in Process 20,32 72.40
Total 60.48 103.84
Finished Goods

Fabric 189.32 46.61

Tarpauline(In SQF) 69.36 =

Plastic Wastage 1.07 0.03
Total 259,75 46.64
Stores and Spares

Diesel 0.19 -

Plant Maintenance (Spare Parts) 10.87 11.06
Total 11.05 11.06

T




[7  Trade Receivables (Rupees in Lakhs)
’ As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Trade receivables
Unsecured- considered good 114.73 S
Total 114.73 -
(Refer note no 2.5 ( e) for accounting policy, note no 2.3 (b) and note no 31 for other information)
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule 31.03.2024 (Rupees In Lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6|6 months{ 1-2Z Years 2-3 Years | Morethan3 | Total
months 1 Year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 114.73 - - 114.73
Total 114.73 - - - - 114.73
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule 31,03.2023 (Rupees In Lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6|6 months{ 1-2 Years 2-3 Years | Morethan3| Total
months 1 Year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good - - - - - -
Total - = - - .
,  Cash and Cash Equivalent (Rupees in Lakhs)
As at 31st Asat31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Cash in hand 1.66 0.04
Total 1.66 0.04
(Refernote no 2.5 ( d) for accounting policy and note no 31 for other information)
9 Loans (Rupees in Lakhs)
Asat 31st Asat 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Loans
Unsecured- considered good 0.15 2.26
Total 0.15 2.26
(Refer note no 2.5 ( €) for accounting policy, note no 2.3 (b) and note no 31 for other information).
10 Other Current Assets (Rupees in Lakhs)
Asat31st Asat31st
March, 2024 [ March, 2023
Other advances 3.77 -
GST recoverable 66.59 -12.27
Prepaid expenses 1.87 1.63
Total 72.23 -10.64
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
11 Equity Share Capital (Rupees in Lakhs)
As at 31st Asat 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Authorised share capital
2500000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 250.00 250.00
(Previous year 2,50,000 Equity Shares of R 10/-each)
(b) Issued and Subscribed :- 15.00 15.00
150000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each
(Previous year 1,50,000 Equity Shares)
(c) Fully Paid up Capital :- 15.00 15.00
150000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
(Previous year 1,50,000 Equity Shares)
Total Paid up Capital 15.00 15.00

i
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a The Details of Shareholders Holding More than 5% Shares :

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
No.of shares %Held No.of shares | %Held
Commercial Sym Bags Limited (Holding company) 1,49,985 100 1,49,985 100
Ranjana Choudhary (Beneficial owner is Commercial Syn Bags —
P o 15 0 15 0
Limited)
Total 1,50,000 100 1,50,000 100
Shares held by promoters at 31st March 2024
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
0,
No. of % of total Yo C.hange
Promoter name Shares (In during the
shares
Lakhs) year
Commercial Syn Bags Limited (Holding company) 1,49,985 99.99 -
Ranjana Choudhary (Beneficial owner is Commercial
. - 15 0.01 -
Syn Bags Limited)
Total 1,50,000 100.00
Shares held by promoters at 31st March 2023
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
0
Na-of % of total % Change
Promoter name Shares (In during the
shares
Lakhs) year
Commercial Syn Bags Limited (Holding company) 1,49,985 99.99 -
Ranjana Choudhary (Beneficial owner is Commercial
g 15 0.01 -
Syn Bags Limited)
Total 1,50,000 100.00
Shares held by Holding company,its Subsidiary and Associates
Equity shares Asat31st Asat31st
q March, 2024 | March, 2023
Commercial Syn Bags Limited (Holding company) 1,49,985 1,49,985
Ranjana Choudhary (Beneficial owner is Commercial 15 15

Syn Bags Limited)

Reconcilaition of number of share

As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

i s No. of shares Rs. No. of shares Rs.
Opening balance 1,50,000 15 1,50,000 15
Issued during the year - - -
Closing balance 1,50,000 15 1,50,000 15

Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share, In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company
after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

)Y
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Capital Management

Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Company's capital management. The
Company's objective for capital management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and
support the growth of the Company. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating
plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The management and the Board of Directors monitor the
return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders.

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year adjusted for bonus element in equity share.

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Earning per share Asat31st ABar31st

March, 2024 | March, 2023
Calculation of Basic EPS:
Total Profit or Loss attributable to shareholders (In Lakhs) 80.58 6.12
Net Profit/ (Loss) for calculation of basic EPS (In Lakhs) 80.58 6.12
Weighted average number of equity shares (In Lakhs) 1.50 1.50
Basic EPS (In Rs.) 53.72 4.08
Calculation of Diluted EPS:
Profit(loss) after tax 80.58 6.12
Weighted average number of equity shares 1.50 1.50
Diluted EPS (In Rs.) 53.72 4.08
Other Equity (Rupees in Lakhs)

Asat 31st Asat 31st

Other equity consist of following: March. 2024 | March, 2023

Surplus(deficit) in the statement of Profit & Loss

Balance as per last financial statement 17.71 11.59
Profit/ (Loss) during the year 80.58 6.12
TOTAL 98.29 17.71
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

As per last Balance Sheet -0.61 -
Add: Movement in OCI (Net) during the year (Prior Period) 3.30 -0.61
TOTAL 2.68 -0.61
Amount Transfer to Other Equity 100.97 17.10
Borrowings (Rupees in Lakhs)

As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023

(a)Term loans

From Banks

Secured 135.82 209,82
(b)Loans from related party

Unsecured 74.40
Net Amount 210.22 209.82

(Refer note no 2.5 ( e) for accounting policy, note no 2.3 ( b) and note no 31 for other information)

Guranteed by

Directors 135.82 209.82

Total 135.82 209.82

Term Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

Term loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited Rs 211.57 Lakhs (Previous year balance Rs 285.57 Lakhs) is secured
by first and exclusive hypothecation charge on all existing and future receivables/ current assets/ movable assets/
movable fixed assets of the Borrower (i.e. Company) of Unit1and SEZ. It is further secured by exclusive mortgage on
following properties :-

o)




14

15

16

Nature of Security - _

(a) First and Exclusive Mortgage charge on immovable property being land and building situated showroom land and
building located

at-

1. Property situated at $-4/3, S-4/2 & S-4/3A, Pithampur Sector 1, Disctrict Dhar (MP) land admeasuring 123050 5q. Ft.
and

Construction there on 150000 Sq. Ft. - 175000 Sq. Ft. (RCC) in the name of Commercial Syn Bags Limited (Lease Hold
Land).

2. Property situated at Plot No. 15, 16, 17 and 18 Special Economic Zone, Pithampur, District Dhar (MP) Land admeasuring
169327 Sq. ‘

Ft. (Under Construction) in the name of Commercial Syn Bags Ltd. (Lease Hold Land).

3. Property situated at company's staff quarters at Plot No. 40-45, Shalimar Residency, Mhow, Indore Land admeasuring
4800 Sq. Ft.

and construction there on 7000 sq. ft. in the name of Commercial Syn Bags Limited (Free Hold Land).

4, Property situated at Block A & B of Office Premises situated at 3-4 Jaora Compound Indore, admeasuring 1680 Sq. Ft.in
the name of

Commercial Syn Bags Limited. (Free Hold Land).

Note : All the above-mentioned properties are cross-collateralized for Comsyn India Pvt. Ltd. And Commercial Syn Bags
Ltd. There will

be Cross-Collateral and Co-terminus clause for exposure in both the entities.

Rupee Term Loan No.-5933TL0100000291 of Rs. 211.57 Lakhs(Previous Year 285.57 Lakhs) is repayable in

Seventy two Monthly Installments ( Including Nine Months Moratorium) of starting from 15th November, 2021 to
15th January, 2027

The unsecured loan is taken from directors and Commercial Syn Bags Limited (Holding Company). There is no fixed
repayment schedule for this loans and no interest is paid on the loan taken from directors.

Lease Liability (Rupees in Lakhs)
Asat 31st Asat 31st

March, 2024 | March, 2023

(i)Long term maturity lease obligation 500.60 532.72

(ii)Short term maturity lease obligation 69.78 67.79

Total 570.38 600.51

Lease obligations
a. Incremental Borrowing Rate applied to lease liabilities is 7.50 %

b. The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractually agreed
undiscounted cash flows along with its carrying value as at the Balance Sheet date.

Maturity Profile of Lease Liability (Rupees In Lakhs)
Pariieulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Below 3 Months 12.09 16.62
3-6 Months 11.12 16.62
6-12 Months ' 18.81 34.56
1-3 Years 158.00 144.58
3-5 Years 161.74 157.67
Above 5 Years 208.62 230.49

Other Financial Liabilities

Asat 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023

EMD ' 2.00 -
Total - 2.00 -
Provisions (Rupees in Lakhs)

Asat 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023

Employee Benefits (Non Current)
Net defined benefit obligations for gratuity 15.23 10.84

Total A 1523 _ 10.84

N )2
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17 Deferred Tax Liabilities

(Rupees in Lakhs)
Asat 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Deferred tax liabilities /assets (net)
Deferred tax liability
Timing difference on account of Depreciation & Others 529 5.29
Deferred tax asset
Timing difference on account of Gratuity -3.18 -
Net Deferred Tax 2.11 5.29
(Refer note no 2.5 (o) for accounting policy)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings (Rupees in Lakhs)
Asat 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Short term borrowings
(a) Loans repayable on demand
(i) From banks
Secured 196.84 158.47
(b) Current Maturities of Long Term Debts (Secured) 75.75 75.75
(C) Loans from related parties
Unsecured 961.37 1,019.69
Total 1,233.95 1,253.90
(Refer note no 2.5 (&) for accounting policy, note no 2.3 (b) for other information)
Guranteed by
Directors 196.84 158.47
Total 196.84 158.47
Other Information

Terms of Repayments of loan

In case of all unsecured loans, there is no fixed repayment schedule. There is no continuing default in repayment of any
loan or interest thereon.
Working Capital Loan from KOTAK Bank Limited of Rs. 196.84 Lakhs having interest rate 10.00 % (Previous balance Rs.
158.47 Lakhs) is primarily secured by hypothecation of Stock, Book Debts collaterally secured by Equitable Mortgage
of PPE at Plot No. $-5/1, Sector - I, Pithampur, Dhar (M.P.) and Corporate guarantee given by parent company

Commercial Synbags Limited .

The unsecured loan is taken from directors and Commercial Syn Bags Limited (Holding Company). There is no fixed
repayment schedule for this loans and no interest is paid on the loan taken from directors.

Trade Payables (Rupees in Lakhs)
Asat 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023

(A) Total outstanding dues of creditors micro and small

enterprises; and 721 2.17
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than

micro and small enterprises 463.31 121.16
Total 470.52 123.34
(Refer note no 2.5 (e) for accounting policy, note no 2.3 (b) and note no 39 for other information)
Trade Payables ageing schedule as on 31.03.2024 (Rupees in Lakhs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Lessthan 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years | 2-3years
year years
(i) MSME 7.21 - = = 7.21
(ii) Others 463.31 = - - 463.31
Total 470.52 - - - 470.52
Trade Payables ageing schedule as on 31.03.2023 (Rupees in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years | 2-3 years
year years
(i) MSME 217 - - - 2.17
(ii) Others 121.16 2 S - 121.16
Total - - - 123.34




20 Other Financial Liabilities

(Rupees in Lakhs)

As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Outstanding liability for payables 3.15 3.75
Employees security deposit 0.12 =
Total 3.26 3.75

(Refer note no 2.5 (e) for accounting policy, note no 2.3 (b) and note no 31 for other information)

21 Other Current Liabilities (Rupees in Lakhs)
As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2024 | March, 2023

Revenue received in advance - 3.10

T.D.S./T.CS. payable 3.23 4.03

Employees benefit related 35.56 32.16
Provision for Interest 1.09 -

Total 39.88 39.28

4
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22 (i)

22 (ii)

22 (iii)

22 (iv)

22 (v)

Revenue from Operations

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
(a) Sale of product
Finished goods 2,454.56 2,158.78
Traded goods 201.26 216.45
(b) Sale of services
Jobwork receipts 197.67 317.02
Total 2,853.49 2,692.25

(Refer note no 2.5 (i) for accounting policy on revenue and note no 2.3 ( c) for other information)
The invoicing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance based payments and
milestone based progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
List of Manufacturing Sales (Domestic)
Sale of ULF/LF/BSLF/BSLF-II 1,961.25 2,138.67
Sale of HDPE/PP Wastage 21.89 7.78
Sale of RP Granules 0.80 <
Sale of Primery Carpet Backing 464.50 -
Total 2,448.44 2,146.45
For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Manufacturing Sales (SEZ Zone)
RP Granules 0.80 -
Other Consumables 5.32 12.33
Total 6.12 12.33
For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
Trading Sales
PP Granules 140.99 90.29
LD Granules 58.31 113.84
Master Batch 1.96 12.32
Total 201.26 21645

Revenue Recognised in the reporting period that was included in the Contract Liability (

Revenue Received in Advance )

For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
Revenue Recognised Nil Nil

Total

Revenue Recognised in the reporting period from performance obligations satisified ( or

partially satisfied ) in previous periods

For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
Revenue Recognised Nil Nil

Total

A

¥
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Other Income (Rupees in Lakhs)
For the Year | For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Interest income 2.51 1.67
Total 2.51 1.67
(Rupees in Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
a. Interest income comprises of Ended on 31st | Ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
(i) Interest income on financial assets that are measured at Amortised cost 1.79 0.99
ii) Other interest 0.72 0.68
Total 2.51 1.67
24 Cost of Material Consumed (Rupees in Lakhs)
For the Year | For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
Mairch, 2024 March, 2023
Raw Material Consumed
Opening Stock 83.85 136.60
Add: Purchases 2,036.73 1,562.73
2,120.58 1,699.33
Less: Closing Stock 205.29 83.85
Total Material Consumed 1,915.29 1,615.49
For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
24 (i) |Purchases Of Raw Material
PP Granules [All) 730.91 504.48
HDPE Granules (All) 908.08 874.77
LD Granules (All) 12.54 0.49
Master Batch (All) 188.11 123.45
PURCHASE OF PVC 27.36 -
Other Material 3.70 0.57
PURCHASE OF POND LINER 69.36 -
RP Granules 88.53 52.39
Belt /Tie - 0.01
Total 2,028.60 1,556.17
Add : Custom Duty/Freight on purchase 8.13 6.57
Total 2,036.73 1,562.73
25 Purchase of Stock in Trade (Traded goods) (Rupees in Lakhs)
For the Year | For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Trading Purchase
Master Batch 2.21 13.03
PP/HD/LD/LLD Granules 194.65 202.14
Total 196.86 215.16
26  Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade & work in progress (Rupees in Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year

ended on 31st

ended on 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Inventories (at close)

Work in Process 60.48 103.84
Finished Goods 258.68 46.61
Wastage 1.07 0.03
Inventories( at com mencement)

Work in Process 103.84 81.86
Finished Goods 46,61 111.27
Wastage 0.03 0.12
Net Increase/(Decrease) . -169.76 42.78

A5




| 27 Employee Benefit Expenses

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
Salari d e
Salaries And Wages 164.04 161.86
Salaries And Wages (Office) 15.97 15.93
Bonus 2541 10.94
House Rent Allowance 10.55 8.35
Education Allowance 3.35 3.39
Medical Allowance 3.35 3.39
Gratuity 7.67 7.12
Leave Encashment 1.14 1.15
Conveyance Allowance 3.35 3.39
Goodwork 5.73 4.92
Washing Allowance 2.87 3.26
Attendence Bonus 3.89 4,13
niribution To Provident ther fu
Provident Fund 2.89 2.63
ESIC 5.34 5.21
Staff Welfare e
Staff Welfare 0.75 0.85
Total i 256.29 236.52
Out of above . :
Manufacturing related 233.56 . 215.33
Others 22.73 21.19
Total 256.29 236.52

(Refer note no 2.5 (1) for accounting policy on employee benefits and 2.3 (d) for other information)

a. Defined Contribution Plans :

All eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund plan. The
Company makes provident fund contribution, a defined contribution plan, for qualifying employees. It also
contributes to employee state insurance corporation,which is also defined contribution plan. The Company
recognised Rs. 2.89 lakhs (Previous Year : 2.63 lakhs) and Rs. 5.34 lakhs ( Previous Year: Rs. 5.21 lakhs)
respectively for PF and ESIC contruibution in statement of profit and loss Provident fund and ESIC are

managed through government administered funds.

b. Defined benefit obligations and plans
Details of defined benefit obligations and plan assets:

(Rupees In Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
Gratuity
Change in defined benefit obligations:
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year 10.80 7.01
Current service cost 6.96 6.60
Interest cost 0.77 0.52
Accurial (gain)/loss -3.30 -3.34
Benefits paid - -
Obligation at the end of the year 15.23 10.80
(Rupees In Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet consist of:
Present value of obligations at the end of the year 15.23 10.80
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year - -
15.23 10.80
Funded plans in defecit are recognised as: - -
Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in Balance Sheet 15.23 10.80

=4




(Rupees In Lakhs)

For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
Expense/ (Gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss consists
of:
Employee benefits expense:
Current service cost 6.96 6.60
Interest cost 0.77 0.52
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in experience adjustments -3.30 -3.34
Expense/ (Gain) recognised in the statement of profit and loss 4.43 3.79
Rupees In Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
Key assumptions used in the measurement of gratuity is as below:
Discount rate 7.10% 7.40%
Rate of escalation in salary 6.00% 6.00%
(Rupees In Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
Bifurcation of Actuarial Losses (Gains) figure from above
Actuarial Losses (Gains) arising from change in Financial Assumptions 0.60 -0.95
Actuarial Losses (Gains) arising from change in Experience Adjustments -3.90 -2.39
Actuarial Losses (Gains) - Total -3.30 -3.34

Rupees In Lakhs)

For the Year
ended on 31st

For the Year
ended on 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Expected Benefit Payments in Future Years ( Maturity Profile )

Year1 0.65 0.46
Year 2 0.59 0.44
Year 3 0.57 0.43
Year 4 0.55 0.41
Year 5 0.61 0.40
Year 6 to Year 10 5.60 3.99

Description of Plans and risks
The company has no defined benefit plans for Gratuity.

The figures of present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost were as measured

and provided to us by a consulting actuary.

Sensitivity Analysis Rupees In Lakhs)

For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st ended on 31st

March, 2024 March, 2023

Sensitivity Analysis of Defined Benefit Obligation with reference to Key

Assumptions

Discount Rate - 1 Percent Increase 13.35 9.45

Discount Rate - 1 Percent Decrease 17.51 12.45

Salary Escalation Rate - 1 Percent Increase 17.51 12.46

Salary Escalation Rate - 1 Percent Increase 13.32 9.42

Withdrawl Rate - 1 Percent Increase 15.46 11.02

Withdrawl Rate - 1 Percent Decrease 14.97 10.54

¢. Compensated Absences
As regards compensated absences, the Company has policy for encashment
within one year from the end of the financial vear) standing to the credit of the

of leaves (which is compulsorily paid
employees on cash basis. i
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Finance Cost (Rupees in Lakhs)
For the Year | For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
Interest to Bank 4.36 8.42
Interest on Term Loan 27.07 29.64
Interest to Others 87.02 113.81
Bank Charges : 0.99 0.42
Interest on Leased Liability (IND AS) 41.04 42.89
Total 160.48 195.17
Finance cost comprises of
a. Interest expenses on financial liabilities that are measured at 118.46 151.86
amortised cost
b. Interest on Lease liabilities 41.04 42.89
c. other finance costs 0.99 0.42
Total 160.48 195.17
29 Other Expense (Rupees in Lakhs)
For the Year | For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
(a)Manufacturing expenses
Granule Making Charges ( From Wastage) 3.75 11.33
Power & Fuel 196.52 179.15
Consumables 12.06 9.56
Repairs & Maintenance
Plant & Machinery 34.69 35.75
(b)Selling and distribution expenses
Freight Expenses 0.51 0.69
Packing & Forwarding Expenses 0.00 0.13
Travelling to Others 0.47 0.32
(c) Administration / Establishment expenses
Conveyance Expenses 0.15 0.23
State Taxes 0.03 0.03
GST Paid / Service tax / Excise Expenses 0.00 0.02
Insurance Expenses 1.78 2.20
Legal & Professional Charges 9.05 0.33
Miscellaneous Expenses 1.52 490
Postage & Courier 5 0.01
Repairs of Computer 0.24 0.09
Repairs (Others ) 0.17 0.06
Rebate, Shortage & Rate Difference 0.66 -0.09
Rent, Rates & Taxes 0.72 7.30
Stationary & Printing 0.58 0.52
Loss Allowances 0.08 1.54
Water & Light Charges 0.93 2.20
d) Auditors remuneration 0.50 0.50
Total 264.37 256.75
The above schedule on "other Expenses' includes the following nature of expenses -
(Rupees in Lakhs)
For the Year | For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
29 (i) |Granule Making Charges :
Granule Making Charges ( From Wastage) - 11.33
Granules to Fabric Making Charges 3.75 -
Total > 3.75 11.33
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(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
29 (ii) [Power & Fuel
Power 195.39 176.83
Opening Stock of HSD & LPG - -
Fuel (HSD) (Modvat) 1.32 2.32
196.71 179.15
Less : Closing Stock 0.19 -
Total 196.52 179.15
(Rupees in Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
29 (iii) |Consumables
Purchase of Liner / Film - 0.05
Purchase of Other Consumables 0.05 9.52
Purchase of Stereo 12.02 7
Total 12.06 9.56
(Rupees in Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
29 (iv) [Stores And Spares Consumed :
Opening Stock 11.06 10.08
Plant Maintenance Purchases 29.26 31.54
Repair / Labour Plant Maintenance Purchases 5.12 5.07
Paper Core Purchases 0.03 -
Electrical Expenses 0.10 0.11
45.55 46.80
Less : Closing Stock 10.87 11.06
Total 34.69 35.75
(Rupees in Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
29 (v) |Freight Expenses
Freight Outward 0.15 0.10
Hammali Charges 0.35 0.59
Total 0.51 0.69
(Rupees in Lakhs)
For the Year For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023
29(vi) |Miscellaneous Expenses
Office Expenses 0.23 0.02
Website Expenses 0.07 0.08
Festival Expenses - 0.13
Fumigation Charges 0.50 0.49
Testing Charges 0.01 0.01
Weighment Expenses 0.23 0.24
Factory Expenses 0.47 3.22
Other Licenses Fees - 0.70
Miscellaneous Expenses Cartage - 0.01
Total =7 1.52 4.90
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Other comphrehensive income

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the Year | For the Year
ended on 31st | ended on 31st
March, 2024 | March, 2023
(a)items will not be reclassified to profit and loss a/c
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 3.30 3.34
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be re-calssified to Profit
or Loss - -3.95
TOTAL 3.30 -0.61

A
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132

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(Rupees in lakhs)
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
(i) Contingent liabilities
(a) claims against the company not acknowledged as debt = -
(b) guarantees excluding financial guarantees - 5
(ii) Commitments
(a) estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account-and not provided for (Refer note no. 3 for capital 200.00 -
commitments)
Income Taxes
a. The income tax expense consists of the following
(Rupees in lakhs)
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Current Tax
Current tax expense for current year 27.44 6.33
Total current tax expenses 27.44 6.33
Deferred Tax
Deferred tax expense for current year -3.18 -7.11
Total income tax expense recognised in current year 24.26 -0.77
Tax expense recognised in Other Comprehensive income
(Rupees in lakhs)
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
(Gain) / loss on remeasurement of the net . o
defined benefit plans
Total - 3.95

(Refer note no 2.5 (m) for accounting policy on Income Taxes)

b. The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at Indian statutory

reported in statement of profit and loss is as follows:

income tax rate to income tax expense

(Rupees in lakhs)
31/03/2024 31/03/2023

Profit before tax 104.84 : 5.35
Indian statutory income tax rate 17.16% 17.16%
Expected income tax expense 17.99 0.92
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax
expense to reported income tax expense
Tax on income at different rates 0.24 0.24
Others (net) 6.27 2.26
Total income tax expense 24.26 3.18

The Company has estimated that the Indian statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company would be 17.16%

under sec 115BAB for year ended 31st March 2024.

c. Reconciliation between the average effective tax rate and the applicable tax rate
31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Tax Rate % Tax Rate %
Statutory Income tax rate 17.16 17.16
Difference due to tax of previous year = -
other reasons 5.98 42.29
Average effective tax rate 23.14 59.45

0%



33 Related Party Disclosures :-
(i) List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transaction have taken place and relationship :-
Name of the Related Parties
Relation Name
Key Management Personnel Mr. Ravindra Choudhary
Mr. Pramal Choudhary
Mr. Virendra Singh Pamecha
Holding Company M/s Commetcial Syn Bags Limited
(if) Transactions with related parties are as follows : - (Rupees in Lakhs)
Outstanding Outstanding
Name of Party 3 1“2‘;22; . balances as on 3 1‘4_’;:“23;3 balances as on
31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Holding Company
(i) |Commercial Syn Bags Limited
Loans Received = 945.29 - 1,019.69
Loans repaid 74.40 - 451.04 -
(ii) |Purchase of Property, Plants & Equipmets - - 091 | =
(iii) | Sales of Property, Plants & Equipmets - - 1.96 -
(iv) {Purchase of Goods 27411 - 140.56
(v) |Sale of Goods/job Work Income 2,287.79 - 2,673.13
(vi) [Interest Expenses 8691 - 113.77
34 Research & Development
The company conducts its R&D initiatives within the broad framework of innovation initiatives.
The company purchased technologically upgraded Tape Extrusion line Circular Loom for its unit.
35 Additional Regulatory Information-

(i) Immovable Properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company and where such immovable property is jointly held
with others, details are given to the extent of company's share. - The Company has no such imniovable properties

(ii) The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipments.

(iii) There is Capital Work in progress.

(a) For Capital Work in Progress, Apeing Schedule is as follows

CWIP Aging Schedule
| | (Rupees in Lakhs)
CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period of 2023-24
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
years
Projects in Progress 11.32 - - - | 11.32

(iv) There is no Intangible assets under development,

(v) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company, under Prohibition of Banami Property Transaction Act,
(vi) The company has borrowings from the bank or financial instilutions on the basis of security of current assets.

(vii) Quarterly returns or assessments of current assets filed by the company with banks or financial institutions are not in
agreement with books of accounts, Following are the summary of reconciliation and reasons of material discr epancies-

Amountas
. Amount as per | reported in
Quarter Particulars Par!aculars .Of Books of the Quarterly Afuouut of
Security Provided Difference
Accounts Returns/
Statements
I Summary of All Banks | Stock in Trade 123.74 11945 4.29
Trade Receivables & 3 =
1l Summary of All Banks | Stockin Trade 120,61 118.30 2.31
] Trade Receivables 82.90 79.25 3.65
111 Summary of All Banks | Stock in Trade 295.21 297.50 -2.29
Trade Receivables 96.08 96.08 -0.00
v Summary of All Banks |  Stock in Trade 536.58 532.18 4,40
Trade Receivables 114.73 114.73 -
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Reason for Differences:

Inventory : Inventory is valued as per companies accounting policy, at the time of finalisation of financial statements whereas the same is
taken on estimated basis for submission before bank.

Trade Receivables :

Difference in trade receivables is due to following reasons -
Making of adhoc loss allowance when submitting statements to the bank while loss allowance as per IND AS 109 is made while finalising

|einancial statements.

(viii) The company was not declared wilful defaulter by any Bank/Financial Institution/other lender.

(ix) ,&la_tnnmmmammlmﬁmmmﬁ NlllNone

balance sheet.

es- No Charge registration or satisfaction was pending on the date of

(xi) Compliance with number of layers of companies- The Company has complied with laws in respect of number of layers of Companies.

(xii) Details of Crvpto Currency or virtual currency- Nil
Details of items of exceptional and extraordinary nafure- Nil

(xiii) The company has not surrendered or disclosed any amount as income during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax

interest and taxes

Act,1961.
(xiv) Ratios
Numerator Denominator |FY 23-24 | FY 22-23 2?:2232 Reasons
Inventory and Trade
Receivable has increased
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.40 016 144.07%|, MOTEaS L R .
Trade Payables so there is
increase in the current
ratio
Increase in profit with
; : Shareholders reduction of borrowings
Debt-Equity Ratio, Total Debt : 17.37 6431 -72.99% &
quity Equity 3 i has improved the Debt
Equity Ratio
: Debt service =
. - Earnings available | Interest & Lease
Debt Servic , 0
ebt Service Coverage Balio, for debt service Payments + Ley 102 4.800
Principal
There is a significant
Net Profits after Average increase in Profit after Tax
Return on Equity Ratio taxes — Preference Shareholder’s 1.09 0.21| 421.80%| in the current year under
Dividend Equity review and the ratio
improves
. Costafgondssold
Inventory T - ‘
ventory Turnover ratio, OR sales Average Inventory 7.30 9.20 20.67%
Increase is average
S ; NetEredit Total Avg. Accounts accounts receivable duri
Trade Receivables turnover ratio, . 49.74 90.18| -44.84 3 e
Sales Receivable e the years leads to the
decrease in the ratio
| . Increase is average trade
. Net Credit Average Trade ables during the year:
Trade payables turnover ratio, 8.35 18.07 -53.789;, | Payabies during the years
Purchases Payables S5 leads to the decrease in the
ratio
Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales Average \_'Vorking 134 211| -16336% Increase in sales improves
Capital the ratio
There is a significant
) ) Net Profits after increase in Profit after Tax
Net profit ratio, fixpi Sales 0.028 0.002| 1142.13%| in the current year under
review and the ratio
improves
) Earnings befor ] Reduction in finance cost
Return on Capital employed & sk Capital Employed 0.12 0.10 30.18%)| andincrease in profit

improves the ratio
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36 a.

36 b,

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments by category
The carrying value of firancial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2024 are as fillows:
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Fair value Fair value Derivative Derivative Total
_— ) ) h 1 through other | instruments | instruments | Amortised carrvin
Fartoiiars HoteNo, Sirougy ) comprehensive | inhedging |notin hedging cost ? g
pralitorloss income relationship | relationship vaRe
Financial Assets
Trade Recievaliles 7 114.73 114.73
Cash and cash equivalents 8 L6d 166
Loan 9 0.15 0,15
Other Financial A<sets [ Non Cuceent ) 4 17.33 3000 47.33
Total 17.33 = - - 146.55 163.88
Financial Liabilites
Borrowings (Current) 18 1,233.95 1,233.95
Burrowings [ Non Current) 13 210.22 21022
Lease Liability [ Cuccent) 14 69.78 69.78
Lease Liability [ Non Cutrent ) 14 50060 50060
Trade Payables 19 47052 47052
Other Fivancial Liabilites (Current) 20 - 3.26 3.26
Tolal - - - - 2,488.34 2,488.34
The carrying value of financial Instruments by categories as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:
(Rupees in Lakhs)
Fair value Falr value Derivative Derivative Total
Particulars Note No. through through other | instruments | instruments | Amortised carrying
profit or loss comprehensive | inhedging [notin hedging cost value
income relationship | relationship
Financial Assets
Cashand cash equivalents B 0.04 0.04
Loans 9 2.26 2.26
Other Financial Assels { Non Curpent ) 4 14.29 5635 7063
Total 14.29 - - - 58.65 72.94
Financial Liabilites
Borrowings [ Current) 18 1,253.90 1,253.90
Burrwwings ( Non Current)) 13 209,82 209.82
Lease Liability ( Current) 14 67.79 67.79
Lease Liability { Non Current) 14 532.72 53272
Trade Payahles 19 12334 123 34
other Financial Liabilites 20 = 3.75 3.75
Total . - - - 2,191.31 2,191.31

Carrying aniounts of trade receivables, cash and cash erjuivalents, bank halances, and trade payables as at March 31, 20

value,

Difference between carrying amount and fair value of Loans, Other financial assets, borrowings and other financial liahiljres

amurtised costs not siguificant. Fair value measurement of lease liahilites is ot required.

Financial Assets Pledged
[(Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. | 31/03/2024 31/03/2023
Cartyingamount of Financial assets 7
pledged as collateral for liahilites 114.73 D00
114.73 0.00

Ters and conditions relating to pledge :-

Trade Receiahles & Other Financial Assets: All existing/ future Trade Receivaliles & Other
Financial Assels have been hypothicated to secure working capital Ioan. Fixed Beposit have
been pledged to secure the Bank Gurantee issued in our favour,

36 c. Profit/ Losses on Financial Assets / Liabilities

(Rupees in Lalhs)

Note No. | 31/03/2024 | 31/03/2023
Net gains or netle<ses on
nrlnalm‘ial asse Ls measeured as FVTPL upon 23 %29 0.8
Initial recognition

24 and 2023, approximate the fair

subsequently measired at




36 d. Financial Risk Management

di.

dz.

d3.

d4,

The Company is exposed primarily to market risks being fluctuations in interest rate, and other risks namely credit and liquidity risks, which may
adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Company has constituted a Risk Management Commiltee, which is responsible for
developing and manitoring the Company's risk management policies. The Company has a risk management policy which covers risks associated with
financial assets and liabilites: The focus of risk management comimittes is to assess the unpredictahility of the financial environment and to mitigate the
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company.

Management of Market Risk

The Company's size and operations resultin it being exposcd to the following market risks that arise from its use of financial instruments:

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive incame and
eyuity, where any transaction references more than one currency or where assets / liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company as per its risk management policy, uses derivative instruments primarily to hedge foreign exchange.

The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate exposure and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange
rates shift ofall the currencies by 1% against the functional currency of the Company.

Interest rate risk

The Ceampany is also exposed to interestrate risk, changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of its financial instruments,
principally debt. Any movement in the reference rates could have an impact on the Company's cash flows as well as costs, The Company is subject to
variable interest rates on some of its intersst bearing liabilities.

The expusure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changss at the end of the reporting periad are as follows:

Interest Rate Exposure [Rupees in Lakhs)
As at 31, March Asat 31, March
1 ) 4 4
Particulars Note No. 2024 2023

Borrowings
Non-Current - Floating (includes Current Maturities) 13 210,22 209.82
Current 18 1233.95 1253.90
Total 1444.17 1463.72
Sensitivily analysis of .75% change in Interest rate:
Interest Rate Sensitivity (Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March, 2024 Asat 31 March, 2023

UP MOVE DOWN MOVE UP MOVE DOWN MOVE

Impact on Equity / P&L 161 161 217 220
Impact on P&L
Total Impact 161 161 217 2.20
Management Of Credit Risk

Credit risk-is the risk that a custumer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to perfurm or pay the amount according to the contractual terms or
ohligations causing financial loss to the Company Credit risk encormpasses of risk of default, risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as
concentration of risks. credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of custamers of a continuous basis to whom the credit has
been granted, ’

Exposure to Credit Risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is Rs 163,88 Lakhs ( Rs 72,94 lakhs lakhs in preceding year) being the total of carrying amount of trade
receivables, balance with banks, bank deposits and other financial assets,

Trade receivables

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited, All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for delault on a quarterly
basis,

Other financial gssets

The Company maintains exposure in bank balances and term deposits with banks, Considering insignificant amounts and short term nature, there is no
significant risks pertaining to these assets.

Management of Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk atises from the Company’s inability to meet its cash flow commitments on the due date,

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring
unacceptable losses,

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks, Furthermare, the Company have access to undrawn lines
of committed and uncommitted borrowing/ facilities,

The Company has maintained a cautious liquidity strategy, with a positive cash balance throughout the year ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March,

2023, Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to service and finance the financial liahilities on a day-to-day basis.



The following table shows a maturity analysis of the anticipated cash lows including Interest obligations for the Company's non-derivative
financial liabilitics an an undiscounted basis, which therefore differ from both carrying value and fair value.

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities for the year ended 31/03/2024 is as follows. (Rupees in Lakhs)
Carryin Contractual | Lessthan | Between one | More than
Farticalars NoteNe. Va]ueg Cash Flows one year | tofiveyears | five years
(a) a maturity analysis for non-derivative financial
liabilitics
Burrowings [ Current Liabilities) 18 123395 123395 - -
Interest on Burrowings ( Current Liahilites)
Trade Payables 19 470.52 470,52 =
Burrowings ( Non- Current Liabiiities) 13 210.22 - 210.22 -
Intereston Burrowings ( Non- Current Liahilites)
Other Financial Liabilities 20 3.26 3.26 - -
Lease Obligations 14 570328 42.02 319.74 208.62
Maturity analysis for financial liabilities for the year ended 31/03/2023 is as follows. (Rupees in Lakhs)
Pitticalars Note No. Carrying | Contractual | Lessthan | Betweenone | More than
Value Cash Flows one year | tofiveyears | five years
(a) a malurity analysis for nan-derivalive financial
liabilities
Borrowings [ Current Liabilities) 18 1253.90 1253.90 - -
Interest on Burrowings [ Current Liahilites)
Trade Payahles 19 12334 12334 -
Borrawings [ Nem- Current Liahilities) 13 209.82 - 209.82 -
Interest on Borrowings [ Non- Current Liahilites)
Other Financial Liabilities 20 3.75 3.75 - -
Lease obligations 14 600.51 67.79 302.24 23048
36 e. Falrvalue measurement heirarchy
Fair value measurement heirarchy as at 31st March 2024
The following table summarises financial zssts and liahilities mea: ured at fair value (Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. | Carrying Level of inputs used Total
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
At Amortised Cost
Trade Receivahles 7 114.73 114.73
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 1.66 166
Loans 9 0.15 0.15
Other financial assets 4 30.00 30.00
AtFVTPL
Lezase Security Deposit 4 17.323 17.33 17.33
AEFVTOCI
Tolal 163.88 - - 17.33 163.88
Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings [ Current Liahilitics) 18 1,233.95 1233.95
Borrowings [ Non- Current Liabifities) 13 210.22 210,22
Lease Liability [ Current Lizhilities) 14 69.78 69.78
Lease Liability { Non- Current Liabilities) 14 500,60 500.60
Trade Payahles 19 470.52 47052
[Other Financial Liahiiities 20 3.26 3.26
Taolal 2488.34 - - 0.00 2488.34




Fair value measurement heirarchy as at 31st March 2023 is as follows.

The following table sumimarises financial a5sets and lishilities measured at fair value (Rupees in Lakhs)
Particulars : Carrying Level of inputs used
Matedla, Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tosl

Financial Assets
At Amortised Cost
Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 0.04 0.04
Loans 9 2.26 2.26
Other financial assets 4 56.35 56.35
At FVTPL
Lease Security Deposit 4 14.29 14.29 14.29
AtFVTOCI
Total 72.94 - - 14.29 87.22
Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings ( Current Liabilities) 18 1253.90 1253.90
Borrowings [ Nun- Current Liabiliries) 13 209.82 209.82
Lease Liahility ( Current Liahilities) 14 67.79 67.79
Lease Liahility [ Non- Current Liahilities) 14 532.72 532.72
Trade Payables 19 123.34 12334
Other Financial Liabilities 20 3.75 3.75
At FVTPL
At FVTOC]
Forward Contract 21
Total 2191.31 - - - 2191.31
Revconciliation of fair value measuremernt of the investment categorised at level 3:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
AtFVTPL AtFVTPL

Opening Balanoe 14.29 13.61
Addition during the year 3.04 0,00
Sale/Reduction during the year 0.00 0,00
Total Gain/(loss) 0.00 0.68
Closing Balance 17.33 14.29

In respect of sume financial as<ts the Company doss not recognise a gain or liss on initial recognition of a Anancial asset or financial liability
because the fairvalue is neither evidenced by a quoted prive in an active market for an identical assevor hiability (ie.a Level 1 input) nor based on
avaluation technique that uses only data from ohservahle maikets. The Company has so concluded because these financial assets are interest free
deposits made by Company

(Rupees in Lakhs)
31/03/2024 | 31/03/2023

Aggregale difference yet to be recognised in profit or loss

At the beginning 0.71 1.39
Reconciliation of changes 29.62 -0,68
At the end of the period 30.33 0.71

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statement

For and on Behalf of Board of Directors

As per our rejiort of even date attached
For Avinash Agrawal & Co

Chartered Accountants
Ravindra Choudhary Pramal Choudhary N :022666C
Director Director
DIN 06417163 DIN 03562347 /

A
Place : Indore (CA Ryvinash Agrawal)

Date: 30.05.2024 Proprietor
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